
Finance & Personnel Committee  

of the City of Onalaska 

Wednesday, June 8, 2016 

1 

Reviewed 6-13-16 

The Meeting of the Finance & Personnel Committee of the City of Onalaska was called to order 1 

at 7:56 p.m. on Wednesday, June 8, 2016.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and 2 

a notice posted at City Hall. 3 

 4 

Roll call was taken, with the following members present:  Ald. Harvey Bertrand, Ald. Jim Olson, 5 

Ald. Jim Bialecki 6 

 7 

Also Present:  Mayor Joe Chilsen, Financial Services Director/Treasurer Fred Buehler, Human 8 

Resource Director Hope Burchell 9 

 10 

Item 2 – Approval of minutes from the previous meeting  11 
 12 

Motion by Ald. Olson, second by Ald. Bertrand, to approve the minutes from the previous 13 

meeting as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 14 

 15 

On voice vote, motion carried. 16 

 17 

Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual)  18 
 19 

Ald. Bialecki called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that 20 

portion of the meeting. 21 

 22 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 23 

 24 

FINANCE  25 

 26 

Item 4 – Hawkins, Ash, CPAs, LLP 27 

 28 
a. 2015 Audit Presentation – City of Onalaska Financials 29 

 30 

Joe Haas of Hawkins Ash CPAs said he would first be discussing the “Summary Financial 31 

Report” document distributed to committee members.  Joe referred to page 3, which is the 32 

balance sheet for all of the City of Onalaska’s funds for the end of 2015.  Joe referred to the line 33 

entitled “Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources” and noted that the city’s assets at the 34 

conclusion of 2015 totaled $118,789,317, while total assets at the end of 2014 were 35 

$111,721,600.  Joe referred to the “Long-term debt” line under “Liabilities” and reported that the 36 

city’s long-term debt totaled $17,965,193 in 2015.  By comparison, the city’s long-term debt in 37 

2014 totaled $14,799,500.  Joe said the city’s water project is a primary reason there was an 38 

increase both in assets and long-term debt.  Joe referred to the “Equity” section and noted the 39 

city’s net position in 2015 was $42,335,696.  This compares to $44,133,544 in 2014.  Joe said 40 

the net position is the city’s business activities and noted it includes Tourism.  Joe said there was 41 

an equity transfer out of Tourism into the Special Revenue Fund.  Joe noted the General Fund 42 



Finance & Personnel Committee  

of the City of Onalaska 

Wednesday, June 8, 2016 

2 

Reviewed 6-13-16 

balance increased from $7,050,113 in 2014 to $7,471,019 in 2015.  Other fund balances 43 

increased from $3,450,850 in 2014 to $5,411,979 in 2015.  Joe said the General Fund balance is 44 

broken down into several categories:  non-spendable, assigned fund balance (earmarked for 45 

certain projects) and unassigned.  Joe said the city has approximately $6.9 million of unassigned 46 

General Fund balance.  This is approximately 82 percent of the city’s expenditures in the General 47 

Fund. 48 

 49 

Joe referred to page 4 (“General Fund Revenue”) and noted the city’s budget for 2015 totals 50 

$8,547,807.  Actual revenue for 2015 totals $8,992,309, compared to $8,780,475 in 2014.  Joe 51 

referred to page 5 (“General Fund Expenditures”) and noted that the city budgeted $8,601,307 in 52 

2015, but spent $8,571,403.  By comparison, the city spent $8,614,434 in 2014.  Joe referred to 53 

page 6, which is the city’s water, sewer and storm water utility income statement, and noted that 54 

the city’s charges for services in 2015 totaled $1,995,357.  This total was $1,824,089 in 2014.  55 

Joe noted there had been a water rate increase in 2015.  Joe noted the city’s rate of return on 56 

water in 2014 was minus-3 percent; however, the rate of return increased to 1.31 percent in 2015.  57 

Joe said the city collected $1,797,336 in sewer revenue in 2015.  This compares to $1,785,364 in 58 

2014.  Joe said the sewer rate of return for 2015 is nearly minus-3 percent. 59 

 60 

Fred noted that there are two rates:  treatment and trans.  The trans was modified by 3 percent, 61 

and the treatment was adjusted to offset the cost for the City of La Crosse treatment charges. 62 

 63 

Joe noted that the city collected $749,425 in storm water revenue in 2015, compared to $708,218 64 

in 2014.  Joe referred to page 7 (“Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Fund Equity/Other 65 

Funds”) and pointed out the deficits for the Gundersen parking ramp ($264,544) and Omni 66 

Center ($101,726) were less in 2015 than they were in 2014.  Joe referred to page 8 (“Other 67 

Financial Information”) and noted the following: 68 

 69 

An unmodified “clean” auditors’ opinion was issued on the city’s financial statements. 70 

The city added $2,717,215 of general capital assets during 2015, of which $1,173,995 was 71 

infrastructure. 72 

The city added $3,072,323 of water, sewer and storm water fixed assets during 2015. 73 

General obligation long-term debt increased $3,853,087 to an outstanding general obligation 74 

debt balance of $43,004,263.  The city’s debt limit is $89,059,750. 75 

 76 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Bertrand, to accept the 2015 Audit Presentation – City 77 

of Onalaska Financials. 78 

 79 

On voice vote, motion carried. 80 

 81 

b. Tax Incremental Finance District #4 Audit Presentation 82 

 83 

Joe said TIF districts are required to be audited at different stages of their life; specifically, when 84 



Finance & Personnel Committee  

of the City of Onalaska 

Wednesday, June 8, 2016 

3 

Reviewed 6-13-16 

30 percent of their expenditures are spent, and also when they are finished.  Joe said the city’s 85 

TIF district is audited on an annual basis and noted one final audit must be performed when the 86 

TIF district closes.  Joe referred to page 4 of the TIF District #4 document and reported $145,353 87 

remained after all funds were collected and all expenses were paid.  Joe said the city will transfer 88 

these funds to debt service fund to pay the remaining debt of the district.  Joe referred to page 5 89 

(“Historical Summary of Sources, Uses, and Status of Funds from Date of Creation Through 90 

January 18, 2016”) and said the total sources of funds was $673,698.  The majority of this was 91 

bond proceeds and grants.  Total uses of funds was $673,698.  Joe referred to page 10, which 92 

shows all activity in TIF #4 from 2010 through 2016.  Joe noted that there were no tax 93 

increments collected and said the value of TIF #4 never increased above its base.  Therefore, no 94 

increment was collected and no money had to be paid back to underlying districts.  Joe referred 95 

to “Long-Term Obligations” on page 7 and noted there were debt issuances in 2010 ($350,000), 96 

2011 ($17,000) and 2012 ($40,000).  The city’s outstanding debt totals $331,466. 97 

 98 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to accept Tax Incremental District #4 Audit 99 

Presentation. 100 

 101 

Fred noted he had received an email from the Wisconsin Department of Revenue and said he will 102 

send a copy of the memo and copy of the audited financials to the Joint Review Board after the 103 

Common Council meeting on June 14.  Fred said the state has accepted the report, which was 104 

filed electronically, and has closed TIF #4. 105 

 106 

On voice vote, motion carried. 107 

 108 

Item 5 – Omni Center financials for 2016 109 
 110 

Fred reported that revenues through April 30 totaled $226,652.61, and expenditures totaled 111 

$204,172.68.  The Omni Center’s surplus, which includes additional revenue of $3,125, totals 112 

$25,604.93. 113 

 114 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to accept the Omni Center financials. 115 

 116 

On voice vote, motion carried. 117 

 118 

Item 6 – City General Fund Financials for 2016 119 
 120 

Fred referred to Department 51300 (“Legal”) under “Expenditures” and noted that 57.53 percent 121 

of what was budgeted remains for 2016. 122 

 123 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Bertrand, to accept the City General Fund Financials. 124 

 125 

On voice vote, motion carried. 126 



Finance & Personnel Committee  

of the City of Onalaska 

Wednesday, June 8, 2016 

4 

Reviewed 6-13-16 

 127 

Item 7 – Update regarding City of Onalaska departmental practices for reconciliation of 128 

funds received by the City 129 
 130 

Fred noted that at its May 10 meeting the Common Council had requested that a report be 131 

prepared for the Finance and Personnel Committee within 60 days.  Fred said, “I’m pretty 132 

confident that we will definitely be discussing two of the departments at the next meeting [July 133 

6.  But I’m going to give you some latitude because the worst one, which I’m going to save until 134 

last, is the Park and Rec pool because there are so many moving components.  Next month I 135 

hope to give you some latitude.  I’m not going to be able to bring all the departments in, but 136 

we’ll pick off at least two:  the Police Department and Joint Municipal Court.  If I can get some 137 

of these little ones out of the way I will certainly do so.” 138 

 139 

Ald. Bialecki told Fred he may have an additional month or two to prepare the report if he needs 140 

it. 141 

 142 

Item 8 – Consideration and possible action regarding online utility payment fee structure 143 
 144 

Fred said the company that produces the envelopes for the city’s water bills no longer 145 

manufactures the type of envelope that allows citizens to mail back their water bills to City Hall.  146 

Fred said the July water bills will include a yellow envelope that includes a message encouraging 147 

customers to pay their bills via cityofonalaska.com.  Fred noted that approximately 900 148 

individuals currently pay their water bills online, while between 70 and 120 pay their bills over 149 

the counter with a credit card.  The city charges a 2 percent convenience fee for doing so.  Fred 150 

said the city will continue to utilize the convenience fee for customers who pay over the counter 151 

and asked the committee to consider not levying a convenience charge to customers who pay 152 

online. 153 

 154 

Ald. Bialecki asked if some retailers levy a charge to customers who utilize credit cards. 155 

 156 

Fred noted there are two methods of using credit cards.  The city utilizes ETS, and Fred said, 157 

“It’s both of those components as one.  That’s why there’s not as much down charges.” 158 

 159 

Ald. Bertrand asked if there will be an increase in cost to the city to utilize the yellow envelopes. 160 

 161 

Fred said the yellow envelopes cost less – approximately 7 cents less per envelope.  Fred said 162 

costs will decrease further either once Dairyland Power is able to process a HML file. 163 

 164 

Motion by Ald. Bertrand, second by Ald. Olson, to waive fees for online utility payments. 165 

 166 

On voice vote, motion carried. 167 

 168 



Finance & Personnel Committee  

of the City of Onalaska 

Wednesday, June 8, 2016 

5 

Reviewed 6-13-16 

PERSONNEL  169 
 170 

Item 1 – Review and consideration of the changes to the Part-Time Mayor job description 171 
 172 

Hope noted the following additions had been made to the Part-Time Mayor job description: 173 

 174 

 The Mayor shall serve as a voting member of the Board of Review. 175 

 The Mayor shall attend the Community Development Authority meetings as a non-voting 176 

member. 177 

 The Mayor shall have such other duties and responsibilities as are prescribed in the 178 

Wisconsin Statutes not including those duties and responsibilities which have been 179 

delegated by ordinance to the City Administrator. 180 

 181 

Motion by Ald. Olson, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve changes to the Part-Time Mayor job 182 

description. 183 

 184 

On voice vote, motion carried. 185 

 186 

Item 2 – Review and consideration of out-of-state travel for Tim Berg to attend Association 187 

of Transportation Safety Information Professionals (ATSIP) Conference in Baltimore, 188 

Maryland on August 7
th

 through 10
th

, 2016 189 
 190 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to approve out-of-state travel for Tim Berg to 191 

attend Association of Transportation Safety Information Professionals (ATSIP) Conference in 192 

Baltimore, Maryland on August 7
th

 through 10
th

, 2016. 193 

 194 

On voice vote, motion carried. 195 

 196 

Item 3 – Review and consideration of Onalaska School Resource Officer Agreement for 197 

2016-2017 school year 198 
 199 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to approve Onalaska School Resource Officer 200 

Agreement for 2016-2017 school year. 201 

 202 

On voice vote, motion carried. 203 

 204 

Adjournment 205 
 206 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Bertrand, to adjourn at 8:27 p.m. 207 

 208 

On voice vote, motion carried. 209 

 210 



Finance & Personnel Committee  

of the City of Onalaska 

Wednesday, June 8, 2016 

6 

Reviewed 6-13-16 

 211 

Recorded by: 212 

 213 

Kirk Bey 214 


